

# Policy and Procedure on

# **Curriculum-Teaching and Learning Policy**

# Purbeck View School

Nicola Senior
April 2023
October 2023
2
Site
All Staff

#### Contents

1.	Legal Status	1
2	Applies to	1
2.	Availability	2
٥.	Monitoring and Review	2
4.	Wonlioning and Review	2
5.	Curriculum Intent	2
	Context	
	Rationale	Z
	Aims	ა
	Concept	4
6.	Curriculum Implementation	5
	Subject leadership and knowledge	5
	Equal opportunities	5
	Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)	5
	English as an Additional Language (EAL)	5
	High achieving students (more able learners)	5
	Mental Health and our curriculum	6
	Organisation	6
	Pathways available	6
	Timetabling	6
	Teachina	8
	Marking, Feedback & Assessment	9
7	Curriculum Impact	-

# 1. Legal Status

1.1. Regulatory Requirements, Part 1, paragraph 2(2) (i) to (x) Quality of Education Provided (Curriculum Teaching) of the Education (Independent School Standars Compliance Record) (England) (Amendment Regulations)

# 2. Applies to

- 2.1. The whole school, inclusive of activities outside of the normal school hours
- 2.2. All staff (teaching and support staff), the proprietor and volunteers working in the school



# 3. Availability

3.1. This policy is made available to parents, guardians, carers, staff and students in the following ways: via the School website, and on request from the School Office

# Monitoring and Review

4.1. The Interim Principal undertakes a formal review of this policy to ensure that the local elements of this policy are continually monitored, reviewed and updated, by no later than one year from the date shown below or earlier if significant changes take place, or if legislation, regulatory requirements or best practice guidelines so requiere.

Signed:

Sarah Stacey Interim Principal April 2023

# 5. Curriculum Intent

#### Context

- 5.1. Purbeck View School is an independent, co-educational, DfE registered day school for up to 40 pupils aged 7 19 years with a diagnosis of autism, often presenting with comorbid conditions.
- 5.2. Pupil profile:
  - All students have had several educational placements before coming to us. As a result, they are likely to have gaps in learning and to be working below age related expectations (ARE).
  - For the vast majority of our students, their previous experiences of school, learning and the curriculum have all been quite negative. They are often disengaged or exhibit poor learning behaviours as a result.
  - All our students have an Education Health Care Plan with autism as their main presenting area of special needs.
  - Our students often have issues with subjects being taught in a traditional manner. The curriculum is therefore adapted to reflect a bespoke approach to students' needs.
  - In-year referrals mean that the size and dynamics of every teaching group change during the year.
  - Our students need dependable, trusting and appropriate relationships in a nurturing environment that guide, reward, motivate and inspire them. They require fair and consistent boundaries to help them engage appropriately with staff and peers and to make positive choices and become responsible citizens in the future

#### Rationale

- 5.3. At Purbeck View School we have designed our curriculum with students' learning at the centre. We recognise that a curriculum needs to be broad, balanced and offer students opportunities to grow as individuals as well as learners.
- 5.4. We recognise that it is our responsibility to optimise learning opportunities throughout the school day our students are learning all the time. Through a combination of learning techniques, we aim to ensure students enjoy learning and feel prepared for life after school. We also offer our students new and exciting experiences through a range of classroom based and out of school activities that are designed to build resilience, confidence and self-esteem.



- 5.5. We recognise that students should be challenged in their education learning from failures and celebrating successes. We have designed our curriculum to be empowering, enabling students to develop their interpersonal skills, creativity and independence.
- 5.6. All teachers and professionals engaged in teaching and learning activities are partners in learning and strive to continuously develop their skills and competencies for providing an appropriate range of strategies to inspire all our learners.
- 5.7. Due to the vulnerability of our students we recognise the importance of ensuring their safety. For this reason, the curriculum is designed to allow staff to engage in conversations and discussions around a wide range of specific safeguarding issues, such as online safety and bullying, imparting the necessary tools and understanding to keep themselves safe.

#### Aims

- 5.8. At Purbeck View School we:
  - Keep the student at the heart of everything we do.
  - Provide exciting, motivational and ambitious experiences for students that enable rapid and sustained engagement.
  - Address students' learning barriers and needs in order to prepare them for the next stage of their education, wherever that may be, their life outside school and ultimately their adult life.
  - Provide appropriate learning experiences, as well as breadth and depth of subject matter, adapting this
    and creating bespoke learning where appropriate.
  - Seek alternative provisions to support the interests and aspirations of students, to develop skills as well
    as resilience and respect.
  - Ensure real-life learning situations to facilitate preparation for future life situations, as well as making our curriculum as practical as possible where we can.
  - Ensure we are equipping our students with key area development such as literacy, numeracy and Science with the understanding that this is likely to be from the perspective of filling gaps, and providing catch up due to our students' previous educational history, as well meeting their age-related needs.
  - Support and challenge our students by intervening where appropriate in a timely and supportive manner that creates progression and growth.
  - Explore our students' talents and aspirations and enable them to experience a wide range of opportunities.
  - Build confidence, self-esteem and resilience and engender a love of learning for life.
  - Develop portable and transferable skills for all students in communication, social interactions, independence, personal safety, self-regulation of sensory needs, self-regulation of behaviour, Literacy, Numeracy and using IT as a tool.
  - Provide a personalised curriculum that meets the needs, interests, abilities and aspirations of all students, ensuring SEND needs are fully met and also provide ongoing support for the next phase of their lives to allow them to make a positive contribution to society.
  - Ensure that our students know how to make a positive contribution to their community and wider society.
  - Promote positive mental health, supporting social and emotional well-being for every member of our school community including, staff, pupils and families.
  - Deliver Personal, Social and Health Education (PSHE) sessions around explicit safeguarding strategies to support students in keeping themselves safe.
  - Promote equal opportunities to all of our pupils in line with the Equality Act 2010 throughout our practices.
  - Become critical thinkers and independent learners.



- Find a sense of belonging to the school and its community to promote the knowledge and cultural capital they need to succeed in life.
- Learn how to cooperate with their peers and tolerate and respect one another in school and in the wider community.
- Promote Fundamental British Values and Social, Moral, Spiritual and Cultural (SMSC) development throughout our curriculum delivery.
- Seek the input of students, parents/carers, other stakeholders and the wider community with regards to the planning and delivery of the curriculum through questionnaires and consultation.

## Concept

- 5.9. At Purbeck View School we give particular emphasis in our curriculum to the development of the following skills:
  - Linguistic (Communication strand, including Literacy and humanities)
     This area is concerned with developing pupils' communication and interaction skills and increasing their command of language through listening, speaking, reading and writing. Reading for pleasure is encouraged and modelled. These skills are most overtly brought into focus in lessons in English. The teaching of literacy and literary skills is not, however, confined to these subjects, and the policy of the school is that teachers of all subjects will encourage good linguistic and literary standards in all pupils' work.
  - Mathematical (Cognition Strand, including Maths, Science, DT, ICT, Work Related Learning and Work Experience)
     This area helps pupils to make calculations, to understand and appreciate relationships and patterns in number and space and to develop their capacity to think logically and express themselves clearly. Their knowledge and understanding of mathematics should be developed in a variety of ways, including practical activity, exploration and discussion.
  - Scientific (Cognition Strand, including Maths, Science, DT, ICT, Geography, Work Related Learning and Work Experience)
     This area is concerned with increasing pupils' knowledge and understanding of nature, materials and forces and with developing the skills associated with science as a process of enquiry: for example, observing, forming hypotheses, conducting experiments and recording their findings.
  - Technological (Cognition Strand, including Maths, Science, DT, ICT, Geography, Work Related Learning and Work Experience)
     These skills include information and communication technology (IT); developing, planning and communicating ideas; working with tools, equipment, materials and components to produce good quality products and evaluating processes and products.
  - Human and Social (PSED Strand, including PSHE, RSE and RE)
     This area is concerned with people and with their environment, and how human action, now and in the past, has influenced events and conditions. In most schools, the subjects of history and geography make a strong contribution to this area. In our school our topic based Personal, Social and Health and Economic (PSHE) education alongside our knowledge and understanding of the world makes a strong contribution to this area.
  - Physical (Sensory / Physical strand including PE, Art, Music, Sensory Integration)
     This area aims to develop the pupils' physical control and co-ordination as well as their tactical skills and imaginative responses, and to help them to evaluate and improve their performance. Pupils should also acquire knowledge and understanding of the basic principles of fitness and health.
  - Aesthetic and creative ((Sensory / Physical strand including PE, Art, Music, Sensory Integration)
     This area is concerned with the processes of making, composing and inventing. There are aesthetic and creative aspects of all subjects, but some make a particularly strong contribution, including art, music, dance, drama and the study of literature, because they call for personal, imaginative, and often practical, responses.



# 6. Curriculum Implementation

## Subject leadership and knowledge

- 6.1. Although it is not always possible, due to the small size of our school, we aim to provide specialist teachers to lead our strands. We ensure that all non-specialists are provided with relevant training and support through networking.
- 6.2. Strand leaders are responsible for the planning, delivery, assessment and monitoring of their curriculum areas, including self-evaluation and action planning. They are required to evaluate and reflect on the learning taking place and make relevant changes to improve the quality of teaching, learning and engagement across the strand area. Subject standardisation and moderation take place with other schools.
- 6.3. It is the responsibility of strand leaders to contribute to the subject related policy and to provide appropriate training in their area of specialism in order to ensure consistency in quality across the school.

# **Equal opportunities**

6.4. Our curriculum is designed to provide equal access and opportunities for all students in the school. We adapt the curriculum to meet the needs, aspirations and abilities of individual students. Across the curriculum, provision is made to stretch the most able students, to address gaps in knowledge and skills and facilitate the learning of students with SEND needs.

## Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)

- 6.5. Our school complies with all legislative and best practice requirements to meet the special educational needs of students. The majority of the students within our settings arrive with a history of special educational needs and individual requirements already identified through their EHCPs.
- 6.6. If a student displays signs of having additional special needs, the teacher makes an assessment in consultation with the Interim Principal and/or Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator (SENCo) and, in most instances, is able to provide resources and educational opportunities that meet the students' requirements.
- 6.7. If a student's need is deemed as requiring additional support, consideration is given to involving appropriate external agencies, stakeholders and special support teachers. We always provide additional resources and support for students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities.
- 6.8. Education, Health and Care plan (EHCP) the SENCo liaises with the student's teachers to ensure that the education he or she receives fulfils its requirements and participates fully in the Annual Review. We ensure that all objectives in the EHCP are monitored and evaluated (please refer to SEND policy).
- 6.9. The school provides an Individual Learning and Support Plan (ILP) for each student. This sets out the nature of the special needs, and outlines how the school will address these needs. It also sets out targets for improvement and progression, informed by the EHCP objectives so that we can review and monitor the progress of each student. The plans are reviewed at regular intervals (Half termly/termly) to inform improvement and progression.

## English as an Additional Language (EAL)

6.10. For students with English as an additional language, we are committed to providing the necessary support and resources so they can fully access the curriculum. There is a policy and established practices within the school to provide progression in line with other learners (see EAL policy).

#### High achieving students (more able learners)

- 6.11. We aim to create opportunities for all students to achieve their full potential. Our curriculum provides the challenge and stretch to enable all students to achieve outcomes in line with their abilities.
- 6.12. Where a student shows exceptional ability or talent in a particular area, the school will support the student by providing additional differentiated resources and opportunities to focus on the development of this particular expertise. This may mean additional tutoring, advanced courses, trips and activities to stretch the individual and cater to his/her needs. A Gifted and Talented register is updated annually.



#### Mental Health and our curriculum

- 6.13. Due to the increasing number of students with mental health difficulties nationally as reported in the School Recovery Strategies: Year 1 findings, it is clear that students in all settings will face a myriad of undiagnosed mental health issues such as stress and anxiety, depression, drug and alcohol abuse, eating disorders, sleep deprivation and the effects of the pandemic.
- 6.14. We recognise that a consistent, whole-school approach is needed to support our students with their well-being and mental health, regardless of the level of needs or vulnerability. If necessary, they start on an enrichment-based timetable, to support an increased engagement with academic lessons. We monitor their mental health closely and align the curriculum to match their needs.
- 6.15. We encourage the use of a range of strategies to build resilience and coping skills throughout the curriculum and beyond and adapt teaching styles and the environment to support students' well-being in line with government guidance.

## Organisation

- 6.16. We aim to follow the curriculum for each Key Stage with consideration to the broad areas of SEND need. We link subjects to the following criteria:
  - Academic subjects.
  - Health and well-being, Mental health support, Enrichment and Life skills.
  - PSHE and sex and relationship education.
  - Careers guidance Please refer to career guidance policy.
  - Vocational please also refer to our vocational policy.
  - Extra-curricular trips, activities, clubs.

## Pathways available

- 6.17. At Purbeck View School we offer a range of pathways dependent on ability and SEND requirements. This includes; Entry level, and OCR life and living skills qualifications.
- 6.18. We are also exploring other accredited options. We ensure all students have an appropriate pathway that prepares them for success in future life and ensures the greatest impact on self-development.

#### **Timetabling**

6.19. Where possible we ensure a full timetable. We do however have students at various stages of illness, recovery and need who benefit from a phased integration. This may mean that these individuals have a reduced timetable or attendance improvement plan. This may be stated in the EHCP or have been agreed during the PEP process. This is always a short-term plan with an agreed time limit by which point the pupil is expected to attend full time.

'All pupils of compulsory age are entitled to a full-time education. In very exceptional circumstances there may be a need for a temporary part-time timetable to meet a pupil's individual needs. For example, where a medical condition prevents a pupil from attending full-time education and a part-time timetable is considered as part of a re-integration package.' DfE August 2020

6.20. Timetables are individualised where possible, dependent on the pathway and individual needs of the student.

# Planning

- 6.21. Robust planning is carried out for each subject area and includes 3 stages of planning: long term, medium term and short term. Our broad and balanced curriculum gives due consideration to differentiation, progression and provides sufficient depth and breadth to allow all pupils to deepen their understanding. We employ a therapeutic approach in our classroom with due regard for health and safety and safeguarding.
- 6.22. In planning the curriculum and putting this policy into practice, Purbeck View School aims to ensure that:
  - Lessons are challenging and have pace, rigour and direction for each of the students.



- A range of relevant teaching styles are employed to ensure that we meet pupils' individual needs and learning styles.
- On-going assessment informs planning.
- Student's learning progresses smoothly through the school.
- Students are prepared for life beyond school.
- 6.23. It is the teachers' role to ensure that they provide a variety of relevant experiences for students that serve to develop knowledge, skills and understanding and enable students to value themselves as learners.
- 6.24. *Therapeutic approach see behaviour policy.* We support students to develop and improve their emotional literacy skills, enabling them to:
  - Express their own feelings and their reasons for feeling that way.
  - Tolerate others and to begin to develop empathetic behaviours towards others.
  - Understand the impact of their behaviours on themselves and on others
  - Know that certain behaviours are not acceptable and that alternative actions are possible.

We encourage the use of tools and strategies such as time out of lessons, distraction toys and regulation techniques, to help students to adjust their behaviours and actions and to positively impact their emotional state. We also offer therapeutic coping strategies to regulate emotions, such as mindfulness, breathing techniques and distraction techniques.

- 6.25. *Differentiation.* We use a range of strategies to differentiate learning. The use of these strategies is dependent on the students' requirements and the knowledge and skills being taught:
  - Dialogue: All students are encouraged to develop high levels of verbal and written literacy. Higher order questioning, related to Bloom's Taxonomy, supports this development, with questions being suited to individuals' needs.
  - Task: differentiated tasks are set in order to challenge all students, whatever their level.
  - Choice: students can choose from a selection of activities to ensure interest and engagement. At times this can mean that students plan a topic, with teacher guidance, setting their own targets and tasks.
  - Resources: resources, carefully tailored to students' needs, are differentiated to scaffold learning and provide levels of challenge suited to all levels of attainment.
  - Support: Teachers and Teaching Assistants (TAs) may at times withdraw direct support to encourage greater independence.
  - Pace: More able students, working through at a faster pace than lower ability peers, may be given extension activities to further challenge their learning.
  - Outcome: Differentiation by outcome on its own is inadequate. However, when combined with other strategies (as listed above) and clear expectations of outcomes suited to the individual students, learning is promoted.
- 6.26. Progression -see curriculum model. Curriculum models show coverage in each stage.
  - Our aim is to ensure progression develops knowledge, understanding of concepts, acquisition of skills and for students to be able to choose and apply these in relevant situations. Our curriculum is based around the National Curriculum and follows the required progression through each subject. Our long-term plans evidence the coverage of the identified knowledge, concepts and skills required to achieve the goals of academic qualifications, relevant experiences, life skills, emotional literacy and social skills in order to be successful in life. We ensure that our students progress smoothly from one level to the next ensuring teaching is sequenced with each step building on prior knowledge. Students often come to us with significant gaps in their education, due to having missed education. Teachers in the school are adept at identifying the relevant gaps in education. It is not appropriate that all gaps perceived are addressed and teachers use their professional judgement and knowledge of the curriculum to judge which skills and knowledge are required to support students in reaching their targets and to access the curriculum content.



6.27. Breadth and Depth. At Purbeck View School we ensure that our curriculum has breadth and depth by maintaining coverage of national curriculum subjects and an appropriate range of experiences. We promote social, moral, spiritual and cultural development by making sure that areas of enrichment, emotional literacy and behaviour support are also implemented throughout the curriculum. We prepare our students for later life by teaching social responsibility and behaviour, supporting each student to be a successful member of society.

The following principles are all taken into consideration when writing schemes of work to ensure the breadth and depth of the curriculum:

- Challenge and enjoyment encouraging high aspirations and ambitions for all through being active in their learning and having opportunities to develop and demonstrate their creativity.
- Coverage all students have the opportunity to experience a broad range of experiences. Learning is
  planned and organised to encourage learning and development through a variety of contexts within the
  classroom and other aspects of school life.
- Progression each lesson is designed to build upon earlier knowledge and achievements.
- Personalisation the learning planned for our students responds to their individual needs and supports
  particular aptitudes and talents. It also provides opportunities for exercising responsible personal choice.
- Complexity opportunities for students to develop their full capacity for different types of thinking and learning, exploring and achieving more advanced levels of understanding.
- Coherence learning activities are designed to form a coherent experience, with clear links between different aspects of learning.
- Relevance students understand the purpose of their learning and related activities through discussion, thereby seeing the value of what they are learning and its relevance to their lives, present and future.
- 6.28. Health and safety and Safeguarding.

'Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is everyone's responsibility. Everyone who comes into contact with children and their families has a role to play. In order to fulfil this responsibility effectively, all practitioners should make sure their approach is child-centred. This means that they should consider, at all times, what is in the best interests of the child.'

Keeping Children Safe in Education - September 2022.

Health and well-being of students and staff are promoted through formal curriculum such as PSHE and Science as well as 'informal' curriculum, which encompasses the values and attitudes promoted within the school, and the physical environment and setting of the school. Examples might include serving healthier lunches and setting up peer buddying systems to reduce bullying.

## Teaching

- 6.29. We offer high quality teaching at Purbeck View School. Our small classes and 1-1 support offer the advantages of student focused teaching with a high level of resources and technological support for all students. The structure of lessons encourages pace and assessment for learning. Our robust behaviour management reduces the negative impact of behaviour on the learning.
- 6.30. Students are set realistic but challenging goals. We intervene to support students who underachieve and we seek opportunities to stretch the most able. This is based on a clear assessment of learners' needs; intervention programmes are tightly focused on improving the progress and outcomes for learners. Staff regularly engage students in conversations about their learning and time is set aside for students to reflect upon where they are and where they would like to be. The emotional and learning needs of every child are at the heart of everything we do and the school promotes high aspirations in order that all learners succeed.



## Marking, Feedback & Assessment

- 6.31. Our assessments have a range of summative and formative approaches which are planned in order to ensure we have accurate tracking in place. We aim to use our cycle of assessment to ensure that we check learners' understanding systematically, identify misconceptions accurately and provide clear, direct feedback. This allows us to respond and adapt teaching as required.
- 6.32. Assessment for learning is embedded within each lesson. Teachers make on-going assessments of the students' progress each lesson and use this information to plan subsequent lessons to facilitate further development of knowledge and skills. We strive to ensure that all tasks set are appropriate to each student's level of ability. Techniques used are:
  - Questioning this enables the student, with teacher support, to find out what level they're working at.
  - Feedback each student is given targeted written and/or verbal feedback about how to improve their learning.
  - Modelling teachers will work on an exemplar with students, so they understand what successful work looks like for each task they are doing.
  - Self-assessment/Peer assessment this encourages students to become more independent in their learning.
  - Summative assessments end of module tasks are used formatively to help students improve.
- 6.33. To further improve teaching and learning we track and analse data with Earwig, an online assessment system.

# 7. Curriculum Impact

- 7.1. At each stage of their education students are prepared for the next stage whether this be further education, employment or training by equipping them with requisite knowledge and skills. We also prepare our students for appropriate qualifications to ensure positive destinations. We recognise that qualifications are vital outcomes and we work hard to support our students in achieving well but equally recognise the impact our curriculum has on developing resilient, caring, well-rounded, culturally aware citizens who understand the contribution they can make to society.
- 7.2. Our curriculum provides for students' broader development, encompassing their interests and talents; it develops their confidence, independence and resilience their very character.
- 7.3. The curriculum enables our students to recognise the dangers inherent in the inappropriate use of social media and mobile technology, to recognise unsafe situations and how to avoid these. Students are taught about online and offline risks to their wellbeing and safety: criminal and sexual exploitation, female genital mutilation, forced marriage, domestic abuse, substance misuse, gang activity, radicalisation and extremism and are aware of the support available to them to enable them to keep safe and to recognise and form healthy relationships.